
From: Licensing (HAR)
To: Licensing (HAR)
Bcc:

Subject: Hidden Wine Premises Application (our reference C24/01034/LAPREM)
Date: 10 October 2024 12:25:44
Attachments: Police conditions agreed.pdf

Licensing Objectives_Conditions offered by the applicant.pdf
Response from applicant regarding Public Nuisance.pdf

Importance: High

Good afternoon,

I am writing to you regarding the above application. You have submitted a
representation and can advise the applicant has offered further assurances to the
concerns raised in your representation (please see the 3rd attachment), this is in
addition to the agreed conditions with North Yorkshire Police (attached) and the
conditions offered by the applicant on the application (attached).

Please be advised that under the Licensing Act 2003 at any stage, following the grant of
a premises licence or club premises certificate, a responsible authority, or any other
person, may ask the licensing authority to review the licence because of a matter arising
at the premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives
If a review application is accepted a hearing would be convened, the options available
to the Licensing Sub-Committee would be:

modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by
reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;
exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within
the incidental live and recorded music exemption);
remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider
that the problems are the result of poor management;
suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
revoke the licence

If the above information provided (including the attached documents) allays your
concerns you can withdraw your representation by responding to this email.  Should you
not wish to withdraw your representation a licensing sub-committee hearing will be held
to determine the outcome of the application submitted to the Licensing Authority; you
will receive an invitation to the hearing which will allow you to put forward your
representation to the committee (or the relevant part of your representation) and a link
to the report will also be sent to you.

If you wish to discuss this with me my direct dial is 01423 556513 or you can ask any
questions via email.

Kind regards

Nicola Kemp
Licensing Enforcement Officer
Licensing Central Area
North Yorkshire Council
PO Box 787
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OFFICIAL 


1.Alcohol may only be sold on-line/Internet or by telephone.  


 


2. The Premises Licence Holder shall install an auditable mechanism to verify that only customers 


18+ are capable of purchasing alcohol via the company's on-line portal.  


 


3. Alcohol shall only be delivered to a recognised commercial or residential address. Orders for 


delivery to a highway or public open space are not permitted.  


 


4. The premises will operate as a storage unit for alcohol, alcohol sold online/telephone and delivery-


based service, and there will no access permitted to members of the public.  


 


5. All deliveries shall be made by a reputable courier or parcel delivery service, or by the premises 


licence holder or other drivers employed and/or authorised to make deliveries by the premises 


licence holder (Taxi companies will not be authorised to make deliveries). Where alcohol purchases 


are delivered by or on behalf of the premises licence holder, the premises licence holder shall ensure 


that the courier operates a Challenge 25 scheme.  


 


6. Where the courier believe that the recipient is under 25 years of age, no delivery shall take place 


until such time as the courier has established that the person receiving the alcohol is over 18 years of 


age.  


 


7. Such confirmation shall be by way of the production of photographic ID. The only acceptable form 


of identification shall be a current Passport, photo card Driving Licence, Military ID card, or 


identification carrying the PASS logo (until other effective identification technology e.g. thumb print 


or pupil recognition, is adopted by the Premises Licence Holder) 


 


8. Records of purchases shall be retained for a minimum of 12 months (date of transaction), and shall 


be made available for inspection at the request of a responsible authority (Licensing Act 2003). 








 


OFFICIAL 


 
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 
 
General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance 
note 10) 
 
We shall at all times ensure that health and safety checks and risk assessments 
are kept up to date and filed for reference. As this will be a small business we will 
not be employing any additional staff, therefore any moving, lifting and carrying will 
be done by myself and Sophie.  
We will ensure that the premise is clear of any hazards and minimalize to ensure 
that we are working safely. We will only work in twos so that no one is working on 
their own in case of any accidents.  
The application for licence is for storage of alcohol only therefore no alcohol will be 
sold or consumed on the premises.  
At the point of purchase the customer will be asked to upload proof of ID before an 
order can be completed. The courier will also asked for proof of age before goods 
are handed over to ensure that alcohol is not sold to any under age persons. 
Records will be kept of training or refresher training. 
 
b) The prevention of crime and disorder  
 
The wine is intended to be stored in the garage which is an out building linked 
to our home. The garage is only accessible via the door adjoining to our 
garden. This door was recently replaced with a composite external door and is 
fitted with Yale lever lock. Keys to this door are kept securely within our 
property at all times and are accessible only to myself and Sophie. Our 
property has three security cameras. One as a ring door bell which detects 
motion at the front of the property, one covering the back gate and the other 
covering the conservatory door and the rear garden.  
There will be no visible advertising of wine or goods from the property. The 
sale of wine is only from the online store and no sales take place from the 
property itself. The wine and goods will not be visible from any part of the 
house. 
Goods will be stored overnight in the locked garage. The property is always 
occupied at night by ourselves. 
Our area is under a neighbourhood watch scheme. 
The property is occupied by ourselves throughout the night and minimal times 
during the day.  
Any incidents of criminal activity will be reported to the Police. 
 
Public safety 
 
The garage is not accessible to the public and is securely locked at all times. 
The garage will only be accessible by myself and Sophie. Keys are kept in a 
safe place within our property. 
There will be strictly no sales of alcohol from the property. Sales only take 
place online and delivered to a specified delivery address.  
The website will ask the user if they are over the age of 18 and will request 
proof of ID at the point of purchase and again on delivery. 
The request for the licence is for storage purposes only and not for sale or 
consumption at the property 
We anticipate no more than one delivery van to visit no more than once a day to 
collect any orders. We have a driveway for the courier to park and therefore will not 







 


OFFICIAL 


impact other road users. The property is at the top of a quiet cul de sac with no 
through route, therefore should not impact the safety of any pedestrians.  
Both myself and Sophie have taken health and safety training in previous roles 
which includes manual handling and lifting. We intend to keep this training up to 
date. At this stage we do not anticipate any other persons handling goods. 
Collection of orders will take place on the property therefore not impacting any of 
the local community. 
The property is fitted with smoke detectors and carbon monoxide detectors as 
standard. 
 
The prevention of public nuisance 


 
As the garage will only be used for the storing of goods and not for the sale or 
advertising of wine, we do not anticipate any disruption to the local community.  
There will be a driver come no more than once daily, within daylight hours to 
collect orders. We anticipate this to cause minimal disruption as collections will 
be on the property only and not impacting other road users. The level of traffic 
coming to our property would be no more than someone getting a delivery of a 
parcel.  
As this is storage only there will be no sound or light pollution. We enjoy the 
quietness of the area we live and have no intention of disrupting this. The 
garage is linked to our own home and next door’s garage and is not directly 
linked to anyone else’s home. 
We foresee minimal waste disposal. The likely waste needing disposed of will 
be cardboard. Which will be stored in the garage and then taken to the local 
recycling centre on a regular basis by myself or Sophie 
We anticipate supplier deliveries could cause disruption. Therefore we plan to 
use small independent suppliers who will deliver in smaller loads and vehicles 
to reduce any significant disruption. Where possible we would try to collect 
orders ourselves to reduce disruption 
 
The protection of children from harm 
 
The garage is not accessible to any children and is securely locked at all times. 
The keys are kept away and out of sight and reach of any children. 
Before someone makes an order they will be asked for proof of age at the point 
of purchase. At the point of delivery the courier will check proof of age before 
they are able to deliver the item to ensure that the customer is above the age 
of 18. 
 








 


OFFICIAL 


 
Response from applicant regarding Public Nuisance 
 
We completely appreciate the concerns raised and certainly value the need for due 
diligence re the safety of neighbours and children on the street (we have a young 
baby ourselves so absolutely understand the concerns raised). 
As we are a new, small start-up business we do not anticipate the volume of orders 
to be high. Our business model does not seek to appeal to the masses, but more to 
a niche of target group that want to know more about wines from the lesser well-
known regions. Also, given the space we cannot hold a large stock of wine. 
Therefore, whilst we are starting up we anticipate deliveries to be approximately 1-2 
times per week. Depending on the volume of orders (which again we don't anticipate 
to be high as this is our first year) we anticipate collections to be approximately 2-3 
times a week.  
Could we also reassure that it is our intention to begin the business from home whilst 
it is starting. If however, in the future, the business does grow, volume of orders 
increase and deliveries/collections are becoming more frequent, we would agree that 
it would no longer be sustainable doing this from home and would seek to move to a 
more appropriate premises. 
I hope that this has provided some reassurance and we are open to any dialogue 
should there be any further concerns 
I have sent some enquiries to some suppliers to check what vehicles they use for 
deliveries and so far everyone who has come back have confirmed they use transit 
vehicles. As we are not ordering by the pallet it is minimal likelihood HGVs will be 
required. 
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